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UNITED STAT ES OF AMERICA

BEFORE THE FEDERAL  TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Jon Leibowitz, Chairman
Pamela Jones Harbour
Wil liam E. Kovacic
J. Thomas Rosch

________________________________________________
)

In the Matter of )
)   Docket No. C-

M. Cather ine Higgins, )
       an individual. )
________________________________________________)

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”), having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of M. Catherine Higgins, hereinafter referred to as Respondent, and
Respondent having been furnished thereafter with a copy of the draft Complaint that counsel for
the Commission proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and which, if
issued, would charge Respondent with violations of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45; and

Respondent, her attorney, and counsel for the Commission having thereafter executed an
Agreement Containing Consent Order to Cease and Desist (“Consent Agreement”), containing
an admission by Respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft
Complaint, a statement that the signing of said Consent Agreement is for settlement purposes
only and does not constitute an admission by Respondent that the law has been violated as
alleged in such Complaint, or that the facts as alleged in such Complaint, other than
jurisdictional facts, are true, and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s
Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having determined that it
had reason to believe that Respondent has violated said Act, and that a Complaint should issue
stating its charges in that respect, and having accepted the executed Consent Agreement, placed
such Consent Agreement on the public record for a period of thirty (30) days for the receipt and
consideration of public comments, and having received and considered those comments, now in
further conformity with the procedure described in Commission Rule 2.34, 16 C.F.R. § 2.34, the
Commission hereby issues its Complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings, and issues
the following Order:
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1. Respondent M. Catherine Higgins is Executive Director of Boulder Valley Individual
Practice Association.  Her principal address is 6676 Gunpark Drive, Suite B, Boulder
Valley, CO 80301.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this proceeding 
and of Respondent, and the proceeding is in the public interest.

ORDER

I.

IT I S ORDERED that, as used in this Order, the following de
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2. any agreement concerning price or other terms or conditions of dealing entered
into by or within the arrangement is reasonably necessary to obtain significa
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furtherance of, a Qualified Arrangement, so long as such Qualified Arrangement is a Non-
exclusive Arrangement.

III .

IT I S FURTHER ORDERED that for one (1) year from the date this Order becomes
final, Respondent cease and desist from acting as an agent, or as a messenger, except, subject to

pt,
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any Medical Group Practice with any Payer regarding contracts, shall notify the Commission in
writing (“Paragraph V Notification”) of the arrangement for which Paragraph V Notification is
required.  The Paragraph V Notification shall include the number of proposed Physician
Participants in the proposed arrangement; the proposed geographic area in which the proposed
arrangement would operate; a copy of any proposed Physician Participation agreement; a
description of the proposed arrangement’s purpose and function; a description of any resulting
eff f00 cm

0.00 t6
( a)Tj

ET

1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 0.0000 0.0000 cm

0.00 0.00 0.00 rg

BT

72.0000 639.8400 TD

0.0000 Tc

0.0000 Tw

(descr)Tj

25.2000 0.0000 TD

(iption of the proposed a)Tj

113.8800 0.0000 TD
7oposed a



7

A. Participating in, organizing, or facilitating any discussion or understanding with or
among any Physicians or Medical Group Practices in such Qualified Arrangement
relating to price or other terms or conditions of dealing with any Payer; or

B. Contacting a Payer, pursuant to a Qualified Arrangement to negotiate or enter into any
agreement concerning price or other terms or conditions of dealing with any Payer, on
behalf  of any Physician or Medical Group Practice in such Qualif ied Arrangement.

VI II.

IT IS  FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Paragraph VII Notification shall include the following information regarding the
Qualified Arrangement pursuant to which Respondent intends to engage
17.sg
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C. The expiration of any waiting
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XI .

IT I S FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of determining or securing
compliance with this Order, and subject to any legally recognized privilege, and upon written
request and upon five (5) days notice to Respondent, that Respondent shall, without restraint or
interference, permit any duly authorized representative of the Commission access, during office
hours of Respondent, and in the presence of counsel, to all facilities and access to inspect and
copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence, memoranda, and all other records and
documents in the possession, or under the control, of Respondent relating to compliance with
this Order, which copying services shall be provided by


